'/
BELLBROOK CITY COUNCIL AGENDA %el]_ brOOk

May 24, 2021

City of Bellbrook
15 E. Franklin Street
Bellbrook, Ohio 45305

T (937) 848-4666
F (937) 848-5190

REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETING**

Due to COVID-19, this meeting will be held via Zoom webinar teleconferencing.
Live streaming of the meeting is available on the City’s YouTube channel
(Bellbrook City Hall).

Should any member of the public wish to speak they may do so by logginginto  www.cityofbellbrook.org
Zoom as an attendee following links at the end of this agenda. You may also

submit comments by emailing the Clerk of Council at p.timmons@cityofbellbrook.org by 3 p.m. on
5/24/2021.

7:00 pm-Regular Meeting
1. Callto Order
2.  Pledge of Allegiance
3 Roll Call
4.  Approval of the minutes of the May 10 regular meeting
5 Mayor’s Announcements and Special Guest
e Eagle Scout Ryan Cross
6. Public Hearing of Ordinances

e Ordinance 2021-5 An Ordinance Repealing Section 860 “Public Shows and Exhibitions”
of the Bellbrook Municipal Code (Havens)

e Ordinance 2021-6 An Ordinance Repealing Old Section 1450.15 “Demolition” of the
Bellbrook Municipal Code and Enacting a New Section 1450.15 “Demolition” of the
Bellbrook Municipal Code (Greenwood)

7. Introduction of Ordinances

e Ordinance 2021-7 An Ordinance Repealing Old Section 412.07, “Special Events” of the
Bellbrook Municipal Code and Enacting a New Section 412.07 “Special Events” of the
Bellbrook Municipal Code (Middlestetter)

8.  Resolutions
e Resolution 2021-L A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into an
Agreement with the Bellbrook-Sugarcreek Local School District for School Security
(Hoke)
e Resolution 2021-M A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into an
Agreement with the Bellbrook-Sugarcreek Local School District for Security at Home
Football Games (VanVeldhuizen)

9. Old Business



10. New Business

e Motion to waive utility billing penalties for the months of June, July and August for
utility billing software conversion

11. City Manager Report
12. Committee Reports

A. Service

B. Safety

C. Finance/Audit

D. Community Affairs

13. Clerk’s Update
14. Open Discussion
15. Public Comment

16. Adjournment

Zoom Meeting Information

Webinar ID: 898 6143 7002

Password: 705485

Future Agenda Items (dates are subject to change)

e June 14 - Resolution of Necessity for General Fund Levy Renewal
e July 26 — Resolution to Proceed for General Fund Levy Renewal

Save the date for June 7" — Community Leaders Meeting hosted by Sugarcreek Township



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting
May 10, 2021

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic the May 10, 2021 City Council Meeting was conducted using Zoom’s

remote webinar platform.

PRESENT: TJ Hoke
Ernie Havens
Dr. Van Veldhuizen
Forrest Greenwood
Elaine Middlestetter
Nick Edwards
Mayor Mike Schweller

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Melissa Dodd

REGULAR MEETING

Mayor Schweller called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 pm.

ROLL CALL
Mr. Hoke, yes; Mr. Havens, yes; Dr. Van Veldhuizen; Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mrs. Middlestetter, yes; Mr.

Edwards, yes; Mayor Schweller, yes.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mayor Schweller asked if anyone had any comments or corrections to the minutes of April 12. Hearing

none he declared the minutes approved.

MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS

e EMS Week Proclamation

Mayor Schweller proclaimed the week of May 16 through 22 Emergency Medical Services Week. This

year’s theme is “EMS Strong”. He encouraged residents to show their appreciation for the members of

Bellbrook’s Fire Department.

Chef Bizzarro thanked Council for recognizing the week by showing our thanks to the men and women

of the Fire Department and what they do on a daily basis for our community.



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting
May 10, 2021

Mr. Greenwood added that he appreciates all the training they go through to provide the best possible

care to our citizens 24-hours a day, 7- days a week. The rest of Council echoed their thanks.

Mr. Hoke added a shout-out to his wife who is an emergency room nurse.

e Asian American Pacific Islander Heritage Month (AAPI)

Mayor Schweller acknowledged that May is Asian American Pacific Islander Heritage Month. This month
is observed annually to celebrate the contributions that generations of AAPIs have made to American
history, society, and culture. The origin of this celebration dates to 1977 when Congress designated a
heritage week. In 1990 this was expanded to a month. He added that over the last year a local group
called Sugarcreek Cares was formed and has been working to promote racial justice in the Bellbrook-
Sugarcreek community. They have worked diligently to raise awareness of current issues including the
rise in hate crimes against the AAPI community. The Mayor declared that this type of violence and
harassment will not be tolerated in our community. He urges residents to continue to educate
themselves on these issues and work toward ending this type of behavior. He included that education
and resources are available at stopaapihate.org. Council joined the Mayor in recognizing AAPI Heritage

Month.

PUBLIC HEARING OF ORDINANCES - none

INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCES

Mr. Havens read Ordinance 2021-5 An Ordinance Repealing Section 860 “Public Shows and
Exhibitions” of the Bellbrook Municipal Code.

The City Manager explained this section of code in Part 8 was found while researching something else.
A new section has been added in Part 4 “Special Events” and this code is no longer needed. This hadn’t

changed since 1974 and she could not find the last time a public show or exhibition was licensed.

Mr. Havens made a motion to introduce Ordinance 2021-5 An Ordinance Repealing Section 860

“Public Shows and Exhibitions” of the Bellbrook Municipal Code. Mr. Edwards seconded the motion.



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting
May 10, 2021

The Clerk called the roll. Mr. Havens, yes; Mr. Edwards, yes; Mr. Hoke, yes; Dr. Van Veldhuizen, yes;

Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mrs. Middlestetter, yes, Mayor Schweller, yes. The motion passed 7-0.

Mr. Greenwood read Ordinance 2021-6 An Ordinance Repealing Old Section 1450.15 “Demolition” of

the Bellbrook Municipal Code and Enacting a New Section 1450.15 “Demolition” of the Bellbrook

Municipal Code.

Mrs. Dodd explained the need for this change was discovered while preparing for the Village Review
Board to hear a request for a demolition permit. It was discovered that a Certificate of
Appropriateness was not included as required in a demolition plan. The County also requires one. Plus,
the transferability of the permit is being added. The Municipal Attorney also recommended some

changes.

Mr. Havens suggested adding a reference on where to find the Certificate of Appropriateness. Mrs.
Dodd explained that a reference hadn’t been made due to a complete rewrite of Article 14 that has

changed the numbering.

Mr. Greenwood made a motion to introduce Ordinance 2021-6 An Ordinance Repealing Old Section

1450.15 “Demolition” of the Bellbrook Municipal Code and Enacting a New Section 1450.15
“Demolition” of the Bellbrook Municipal Code. The motion was seconded by Mr. Havens. The Clerk
called the roll. Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mr. Havens, yes; Mr. Hoke, yes; Dr. Van Veldhuizen, yes; Mrs.

Middlestetter, yes; Mr. Edwards, yes; Mayor Schweller, yes. The motion passed 7-0.

RESOLUTIONS — none

OLD BUSINESS - none

NEW BUSINESS

e Motion to waive the sign ordinance for the Community Garage Sale May 20-22

The annual garage sale will be taking place on May 20-22. Dr. Van Veldhuizen made a motion to waive

the sign ordinance during the garage sale. Mr. Edwards seconded the motion. The Clerk called the

3



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting
May 10, 2021
roll. Dr. Van Veldhuizen, yes; Mr. Edwards, yes; Mr. Hoke, yes; Mr. Havens, yes; Mr. Greenwood, yes;

Mrs. Middlestetter, yes, Mayor Schweller, yes. The motion passed 7-0.

e Review of Section 12 Special Event Ordinance Revisions

The City Manager explained that in 2019 Council passed the Special Events ordinance. It was never used
in 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic but when it was looked at again it has been discovered that some
changes need to be made. The purpose of this code requiring a permit to hold a temporary special event
is to ensure participants are safe and proper insurance is obtained. Originally it included any property
on which the general public was invited. Mrs. Dodd spoke with insurance professionals who explained
that a homeowner or business owner would already have liability insurance. Additional insurance is still
recommended if you are inviting the general public onto private property. This ordinance is being
revised to only encompass public property. Public property includes city-owned parking lots, city-owned
buildings, and public right-of-ways including but limited to streets and sidewalks. References to mobile
food vehicles was removed because we do not have an ordinance for them. Examples were added to
temporary structures. We also allow for recurring events to need a single permit. Exemptions were

added for events hosted by the City, schools, and the parks district.

Mr. Hoke asked if a neighborhood block party would require a permit. Mrs. Dodd answered that they

would not require one unless a street was being closed.

Mr. Havens commented that he was disappointed that references to exempting patriotic events was
removed because those are not seen often. Mrs. Dodd added that those kind of events, such as a fourth
of July parade would require City services and would need a permit. The need for the ordinance is more

about the place, not the nature of the event.

e 2021 Paving Program
The City Manager directed Council to the charts included in the packet that included the list of streets
to be paved this year and the estimated cost from the Greene County engineers. Bellbrook is part of a
collective bid with other Greene County municipalities. Historically the City has allocated $150,000 to

paving each year. In addition, the City now receives additional funds from the gas tax that goes into the

4



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting
May 10, 2021
Streets Fund. We propose using $50,000 of that money to increase the paving program. In 2020 the
City allocated $200,000 to paving. The actual cost came in at $165,000. The 2021 budget was set at
$200,000 for paving. Revenue to date from the gas tax is $91,000.

Streets to be paved include: Cedar Court, Glenberry Circle, Kensington Drive, N Field Drive, Plantation
Trail, Poston Drive and Sable Ridge Drive. The Service Director would like to add Knob Hill Drive for

$35,000 due to when it was last paved.

Mayor Schweller asked if instead of allocating from the Capital Fund couldn’t more come from the

Streets Fund and leaves a bigger balance in the General Fund which has less restrictions. He
recommended splitting it between Capital and Streets. Mrs. Dodd agreed and said that half could come

from each fund.

Mr. Havens asked what happens to the balance that is not spent this year or if it could be used for
something else like repairs to Little Sugarcreek Road. Mrs. Dodd replied that Little Sugarcreek Road is
actually a permissive tax street which had a decent fund balance that has been used for some of the
studies that have been done on the road. Some of the gas tax revenue goes to that fund. Mr. Edwards
added the question that if we wanted to use the money in the Streets fund for a non-permissive tax

road, could we. Mrs. Dodd said that is allowed.

Council agreed to add the requested street to the paving plan for this year.

CITY MANAGER REPORT

Mrs. Dodd reported the following:

e Bellbrook was awarded the Greene County Municipal Grant to cover 75% or the Streetscape
Plan project ($26,625). Approval was received from the Greene County CIC first and then the
Board of County Commissioners. We were one of three projects awarded out of six projects
submitted. This brings the City’s contribution to fund the plan to only 25% or $8,875!

e Finance and Utility Billing Software conversion will take place on May 27 and will be live on the
4th of June. Utility billing customers will have a new website to make payments from and this
will be communicated in a variety of methods including with the utility bills, on the website and

possibly HyperReach. Information about signing up will be going out to customers soon.
5



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting
May 10, 2021

e For the second year in a row, the Greene County Budget Commission has waived the
requirement to file a tax budget. There was a letter that was shared by the budget commission
stating that they “will be looking at budgets closely and funds with property tax levies which do
not show a need based on the budget may be reduced by the Commission”. The tax budget is
used to demonstrate the need for property tax funds each year.

e The process and requirements for getting Bellbrook TV back up and running is still being
researched. Currently the connection from the equipment to the cable provider is no longer
supported. Since this system needs to be move it to the City administration building, a new line
will have to be ran. We are working to understand that now.

e American Rescue Plan — Guidelines related to the American Rescue Plan funds were released
just today. They have not yet been reviewed in depth. The allocations are supposed to be

distributed at any time.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Service — Mr. Greenwood reported that there was a reduction in the cost of asphalt this year which was

nice news. PFAS testing of the City water has been continuing. The final restorations are done
which means the North Belleview Road culvert and road project are 100 percent complete. In the

future the City might discuss adding guardrails, but the sides have firmed up and it looks great.

Safety — Mr. Hoke announced that blood pressure checks will be performed every Friday from 10:00 to
11:00 a.m. for free to anyone who goes to Fire Station #2. The Police Department received vest
carriers through a donation from the Lion’s Club. These allow officers to wear their vest outside of
their shirts while still appearing in uniform. Tornado sirens are still being researched and reported

that Bellbrook could tie in with the Xenia system for activation.

Finance — Mr. Edwards reported that the audit through March is complete. There were no Capital

expenditures in the first quarter.

Mrs. Dodd explained that Mr. Hoke had asked about some expenditures which were higher this
year compared to budget and where we are in the year. There had been carryover encumbrances

spent near the beginning of the year. The largest was from 2020 from the COVID Relief Funds that



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting
May 10, 2021

carried over. Another higher expenditure was payments to our debt service which occurred just

because of when the payments were due.

Mr. Edwards made a motion to accept the first quarter financials._Mr. Hoke seconded the motion.
The Clerk called the roll. Mr. Edwards, yes; Mr. Hoke, yes; Mr. Havens, yes; Dr. Van Veldhuizen,

yes; Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mrs. Middlestetter, yes; Mayor Schweller, yes. The motion passed 7-0.

Community Affairs — Mrs. Middlestetter announced that the Committee will be scheduling interviews

for the opening on the Village Review Board. She also announced the news that Glenn Costie will
be moving out of state and this creates an opening on the Board of Zoning Appeals/Property
Review Commission. Applications will be accepted through June 10 and are available on the City

website.

CLERK’S REPORT

Mrs. Timmons reported June 7 will be the next Community Leaders Meeting.

COMMENTS

Mr. Greenwood reported attending the last Bellbrook Sugarcreek Parks District meeting after hearing

from many residents concerning the appointment of the new Commissioner. The next meeting will be
May 27 at 7:00 a.m. The Commissioners and Park Director Jeff Stewart were pleased to have people
present at the meeting. He asked why the meetings were held at 7:00 a.m. They responded that they
had been at 7:00 p.m. but many people had conflicts with that time also. He also asked them about the
vision for the parks district specifically as it pertains to new ball fields. The Commissioners said they
understand this need and explained that discussions with the Lion’s Club had not resulted in any
progress. They pointed out that much of the land is donated and there are many restrictions concerning

the use. They said they want to work with the Lion’s Club to make this happen for our community.

Mr. Hoke congratulated Mrs. Dodd on the Greene County grant award. He also reported attending
PeeWee Martin’s 100%™ birthday celebration which was an impressive event celebrating Mr. Martin and

all those who served. He saw one of the Army Golden Knights parachute which was an awesome sight.



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting
May 10, 2021

Mayor Schweller thanked the Lion’s Club for their donations for the Police vests. He also reminded

Council that financial disclosures are due to the Ohio Ethics Commission on the 17th.

PUBLIC COMMENT

David Buccalo, 126 Lower Hillside Drive, thanked the Mayor, Deputy Mayor and Law Director for meeting

with him. He wants to remind Council members that the purpose of recusing yourself is so that you do
not have to resign over a conflict of interest. He announced that he believes that a conflict still exists for
one Council member who should recuse themselves from planning and zoning activities. He plans to file
a complaint with the State of Ohio. In an effort to be transparent he told Council that any one of them
was free to talk to him personally about this. He also said he had spoken with the Parks Director about
the sponsorship of events at Bellbrock Park by a Council member. He was told that the sponsor will
receive no income from these events. Mr. Buccalo did say he does believe that the name and logo of
the parks district is being used for personal promotion. He believes there is a danger when people blur
boundaries. He stated for the record that Mr. Havens has been trespassed by the Police Department
from several Bellbrook business properties. The Police reports are public record that anyone can look

at.

ADJOURNMENT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION

The Mayor announced that there was no further open business and Council will enter into executive

session at 8:18 PM.

Mr. Edwards made a motion to enter into executive session and Mrs. Middlestetter seconded the

motion. All were in agreement.

Michael W. Schweller, Mayor

Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council



Jonas J. Gruenberg
Merle F. Wilberding
J. Stephen Herbert
R. Scott Blackbum
Sam Warwar
Terence L. Fague
Richard A. Talda
David C. Korte
Stephen M. McHugh
Douglas M. Ventura
Kristin A. Finch
David P. Pierce
Shannon L. Costello
Christopher R. Conard
Marc L. Fleischauer
Michelle D. Bach
Gregory M. Ewers
Daniel J. Gentry
Chad D. Hansen

R. Michael Osbom
Patricia J. Friesinger
Joshua R. Lounsbury
Michael G. Leesman
W. Chip Herin [l
Jeffrey A. Winwood
Lu Ann Stanley
Tino M. Monalde
Edie E. Crump

Erica L. Glass
Patrick Martin
Benjamin A. Mazer
Robert D. Ballinger
Zachary B. White
Ashley E. Warwar
Jason D. Norwood
Kara T. Ruffolo

J. Bradford Coolidge
1886-1965

Hugh E. Wall, Jr.
1912-2001

Ronald S. Pretekin
1942-2011

Suite 600
33 West First Street

COOLIDGE WALL

A Legal Professional Association 937-223-8177

Fax: 937-223-6705
www.coollaw.com

Direct Dial Number
937-449-5544

E-mail Address:
mchugh@coollaw.com

May 10, 2021

Mayor Michael Schweller
City of Bellbrook

15 East Franklin Street
Bellbrook, OH 45305

Re:  Opinion Concerning General Ethics Guidelines Conflict of Interest
Dear Mayor Schweller:

At your request, I reviewed General Ethics issues and the issue of public officials, their
customers and city business. My research focused on the limitations placed on a public
official. The Ohio Ethics Commission verified my conclusions concerning limitations
placed on the actions of a public official.

To the question, “are there limitations on the actions of a public official,” Ohio law
prohibits public officials from participating in matters affecting their customers or clients
if the official has a direct or contingent interest in the outcome of Council’s decision or
recommendation. The Ohio Ethics Commission issued several advisory opinions
regarding decisions made by public officials affecting their customers. In these opinions,
the Ethics Commission set forth a two-part test involving a public official’s participation
in matters in which a customer has an interest. First, does the individual or company
have a longstanding, ongoing, and substantial customer relationship with the public
official’s business? Second, does the matter before the public official affect the nature or
extent of that customer relationship?

The relevant statute is Ohio Revised Code Section 102.03(D). This statute prohibits a
public official from participating in matters that will benefit parties with whom he/she
has a close family, economic, or business relationship because the relationship may
impair the public official’s objectivity and independence of judgment. More specifically,
a public official is prohibited from using his/her authority or influence of office to secure
“anything of value.” The Ethics Commission held that this statute prohibits a member of
a city council from voting, deliberating, participating in discussions, or otherwise using
his/her official authority or influence with regard to any matter that would provide a
definite and particular pecuniary benefit or detriment to property owned by a business
associate, because the relationship between the public official and his/her business
associate is such that the official’s objectivity and independence of judgment could be
impaired by the relationship.

Dayton, Ohio 45402-1289

Legal Services Since 1853



CoOLIDGE WALL

A Legal Professional Association

Mayor Michael Schweller
May 10, 2021
Page 2

The Ethics Commission’s opinions focus on a public official’s receipt of “anything of
value.” The Commission interpreted the phase “anything of value” broadly to include
money and “every other thing of value.” A positive or negative financial impact of a
decision is a “thing of value.” Importantly, a “thing of value” includes something as
small as a round of golf. Adv. Op. No. 2001-03. Therefore, anything of “substantial”
value includes anything of value.

As an example of prohibited conduct, the Ethics Commission held that Ohio Revised
Code Section 102.03(D) prohibits a city planning commission member, who is an
employee and stockholder of a bank, from participating in any matter affecting the
financial interests of a bank customer if the bank would have a direct or contingent
interest in the planning commission’s decision. Adv. Op. No. 91-004.

As an additional example, the Ohio Ethics Commission held that a city councilmember
who is employed by a private law firm is prohibited from participating in a matter before
city council in which a client of the councilmember’s law firm has a contingent interest
and a law firm’s receipt of the client fees is dependent upon the council’s determination
of the matter. Adv. Op. No. 90-008. The councilmember in this matter was not a partner
at the law firm, did not represent the client who was before council, and did not receive a
part of the firm’s profits. However, the Commission still concluded that he should not
participate in matters affecting his law firm because he received a salary from the firm.

-In summary, if a city councilmember is the owner of a company that receives anything of
value from a particular customer, participation in a decision impacting or affecting that
customer is prohibited. = Ohio Revised Code Section 102.03(D) prohibits city
councilmembers from using their office to affect the interests of their customers.
Therefore, city councilmembers should recuse themselves from any decisions that
involve customers if the decision could affect the customer relationship.

Another thing to consider in avoiding conflicts of interest is the separation of duties
outlined in the City Charter for the City Manager and Councilmembers. As a Council-
Manager municipality, the City Manager is responsible for directing and supervising the
administration of all departments, offices, and divisions of the City. Councilmembers are
not to interfere with the administration of the City. This requires Councilmembers to
deal with City officers and employees who are subject to the direction and supervision of
the Manager solely through the Manager. The Charter explicitly prohibits
Councilmembers from giving any orders to City officers and employees, either publicly
or privately. Councilmembers must express their views concerning municipal personnel
matters with the City Manager.




CooLIDGE WALL

A Legal Professional Association

Mayor Michael Schweller
May 10, 2021
Page 3

I contacted the Ohio Ethics Commission regarding this issue to obtain the Commission’s
input. Based on the recommendation from a Staff Advisory Attorney with the Ohio
Ethics Commission, I strongly urge Councilmembers to recuse themselves from
deliberations and decisions affecting their customers. The Attorney made it clear to me
that not doing so risks an ethics investigation.

If you have any questions regarding this matter or need additional information or
analysis, please do not hesitate to call or email me. Thank you for allowing me to assist
you with this matter.

SMM/JRL/jmc

w:\wdox\client\120810\00100\01182605.docx






RECORD OF ORDINANCES

Ordinance No. 2021-5 May 24, 2021

CITY OF BELLBROOK, OHIO
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-5

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 860, “PUBLIC SHOWS AND EXHIBITIONS” OF
THE CITY OF BELLBROOK MUNICIPAL CODE.

WHEREAS, the Bellbrook Municipal Code added Section 412.07 “Special Events” to its Codified
Ordinances with the adoption of Ordinance 2019-16; and

WHEREAS, Section 412.07 of the Bellbrook Municipal Code provides regulations for various
types of events open to the public in the City of Bellbrook; and

WHEREAS, Bellbrook Municipal Code Section 860 “Public Shows and Exhibitions” is deemed no
longer necessary and needs repealed in its entirety.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF BELLBROOK HEREBY ORDAINS:

Section 1. Section 860 “Public Shows and Exhibitions” of the City of Bellbrook Municipal
Code is hereby repealed.
Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning

and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that any
and all deliberations of this Council that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public,
in compliance with all legal requirements, including, but not limited to Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised
Code.

Section 3. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period
provided by law.
PASSED this day of , 2021.

Michael W. Schweller, Mayor

ATTEST:

Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Stephen M. McHugh, Municipal Attorney







CHAPTER 860. - PUBLIC SHOWS AND EXHIBITIONS®

Sec. 860.01. - License required; exceptions.

No person shall conduct any permanent, temporary or itinerant form of amusement,
such as theatrical exhibitions, public shows or performances or carnivals, for which
money or other reward is demanded or received, unless he or she first obtains a
license and pays the required fees therefor. However, this section shall not apply to
entertainment, exhibitions and shows conducted by schools, churches or patriotic
organizations, nor to exhibitions otherwise specifically regulated and licensed by
another section of these Codified Ordinances or any other ordinance of the City.
Athletic games and moving picture shows shall not be included among the enterprises
requiring a license under this section.

(Ord. 74-38, passed 11-11-74)

Sec. 860.02. - Application for licenses.

Every person who wishes to continue to, or begin to, conduct any amusement at a
permanent or temporary place of amusement or any itinerant form of amusement
shall file an appropriate application for a permanent, temporary or itinerant form of
amusement license with the Manager. Upon approval of the application by the
Manager and upon payment of the required fee, the Director of Finance shall issue
such license.

(Ord. 74-38, passed 11-11-74)

Sec. 860.03. - Validity of licenses; display; effective period; renewals;
other licenses.

An amusement license shall be valid only for the person in whose name it is issued
and for the conduct of amusements at the place designated therein. It shall be
conspicuously displayed at the place for which it is issued during the period of ticket
sale and conduct of the amusement and it shall not be assignable. All licenses for
permanent places of amusement shall expire on December 31 next following the date
upon which they are issued. Licenses for temporary places of amusement, or for
forms of itinerant amusement, shall expire at the time specified therein. Licenses
issued for permanent places of amusement under this chapter may be renewed
annually before January 1, upon application to the Manager. The license required in
this chapter shall be in addition to any and all licenses otherwise required by law.

(Ord. 74-38, passed 11-11-74)



Sec. 860.04. - Fees.

The fees for the license required by Section 860.01 shall be twenty-five dollars ($25.00)
for the first day and ten dollars ($10.00) for each additional consecutive day that the
amusement is to be held.

(Ord. 74-38, passed 11-11-74)

Sec. 860.99. - Penalty.

Whoever violates or fails to comply with any of the provisions of this chapter is guilty
of a minor misdemeanor and shall be fined not more than one hundred dollars
($100.00) for each offense. A separate offense shall be deemed committed each day
during or on which a violation or noncompliance occurs or continues.

(Ord. 74-38, passed 11-11-74)


https://library.municode.com/oh/bellbrook/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTEIGHTBURETACO_TITTWOBURE_CH860PUSHEX_S860.01LIREEX

RECORD OF ORDINANCES

Ordinance No. 2021-6 May 24, 2021

CITY OF BELLBROOK, OHIO
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-6

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING OLD SECTION 1450.15, “DEMOLITION” OF THE
BELLBROOK MUNICIPAL CODE AND ENACTING A NEW SECTION 1450.15
“DEMOLITION” OF THE BELLBROOK MUNICIPAL CODE.

WHEREAS, the Bellbrook Municipal Code includes Section 1450.15 “Demolition,” which outlines
regulations for the demolition of structures in the City of Bellbrook; and

WHEREAS, Article 14 of the Bellbrook Zoning Code provides that a “Certificate of
Appropriateness” must be issued prior to any demolition occurring in the “Old Village District”; and

WHEREAS, revisions to Section 1450.15 are required to make this section more consistent with the
requirements of Article 14 of the Bellbrook Zoning Code and to clarify notice requirements.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF BELLBROOK HEREBY ORDAINS:

Section 1. The old Section 1450.15 “Demolition” of the Bellbrook Municipal Code is hereby
repealed.

Section 2. A new Section 1450.15 “Demolition” of the Bellbrook Municipal Code is hereby
enacted as set forth in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, with
deletions shown by strikethrengh and additions by italics and underlined.

Section 3. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that any
and all deliberations of this Council that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public,
in compliance with all legal requirements, including, but not limited to Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised
Code.

Section 4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period
provided by law.
PASSED this day of , 2021.

Nick Edwards, Deputy Mayor

ATTEST:

Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Stephen M. McHugh, Municipal Attorney







RECORD OF ORDINANCES

Ordinance No. 2021-6 May 24, 2021

EXHIBIT A

Sec 1450.15. - Demolition.

(a)

(b)

Demolition standards.

(1

2)

Purpose. 1t is the purpose of this section to ensure that demolition projects conducted in the City of
Bellbrook are done in a safe and complete manner. The end product of demolition will be a "park-
like" graded grass lot.

Applicability. These standards apply to all demolitions of residential, commercial and industrial
principal and accessory structures. No structure, required to meet the standards of this Ssection, shall
be demolished, in whole or in part, without the issuance of a Ddemolition Ppermit prior to
commencing work.

a. Exceptions. Fences, storage sheds (no larger than 250 square feet) and above-ground
swimming pools shall be exempt from Section 1450.15 in its entirety.

Ordered demolition.

(1

2)

)

“4)

In general. The Code Official may order the owner of premises upon which is located any structure
or part thereof which, in the Code Official's judgment, is so deteriorated or dilapidated or has become
so out of repair as to be dangerous, unsafe, unsanitary or otherwise unfit for human habitation,
occupancy or use, and cannot reasonably be repaired, to raze and remove such structure or part
thereof, or, if it can be made safe by repairs, to repair it and make it safe and sanitary or to raze it and
remove it at the owner's option, or, where there has been a cessation of normal construction without
completion of any structure for a period of more than two years, to raze and remove such structure or
part thereof.

Unreasonable repairs. Whenever the Code Official determines that the cost of such repairs would
exceed 100 percent of the current value of such structure, such repairs shall be presumed to be
unreasonable and it shall be presumed, for the purpose of this section, that such structure is a public
nuisance which may be ordered to be razed without option on the part of the owner to repair. Any
such affected property owner may appeal the decision of the Code Official to the Bellbrook Property
Review Commission pursuant to Section 1450.16 “Means of Appeal.”

Order. The order shall be in compliance with Section 1450.11, and it shall speeify-a-time-within-which

%h%ewne%ﬁ%aﬂ—eemp%y—there\ﬂﬂ%m&d—speerﬁy—repaﬁs—rﬁaml—leshaﬁ be served on all the-owners of
record, © ing, and upon any-the holder of any

g ' 5>
encumbrance of record in the manner provrded for service of a summons by a-eourt-ef record-the
Greene County Common Pleas Court. If the owner or a holder of an encumbrance of record cannot

be found, the order may be served by postrng it on the main entrance of the building and by publishing

it once each week for three successive weeks in a newspaper autherized—to—provide—service—of
publieation of general circulation.

Restraining actions. Anyone affected by any such order may, within 2630 days after service of such
order, apply to a court of record for an order restraining the Code Official from razing and removing
such structure or parts thereof.



https://library.municode.com/oh/bellbrook/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTFOURTEENBUHOCO_TITFOURMIBURE_CH1450PRMACO_S1450.15DE

RECORD OF ORDINANCES

Ordinance No. 2021-6 May 24, 2021

(c)

(d)

)

(6)

Failure to comply. Whenever the owner of a property fails to comply with a demolition order within
the time prescribed, the Code Official shall cause the structure or part there to be razed and removed,
either through an available public agency or by contract or arrangement with private persons, and
the cost of such razing and removal shall be charged against the real estate upon which the structure

is located and shall be a lien upon such real estate. may-take-actionpursuant-to-the-provisions-ofthe

Salvage materials from an ordered demolition. When any structure has been ordered to be razed and
removed, the governing body or other designated officer under such contract or arrangement aforesaid
may sell the salvage and valuable materials at the highest price obtainable. The net proceeds of such
sale, after deducting the expenses of such razing and removal, shall be promptly remitted with a report
of such sale or transaction, including the items of expense and the amounts deducted, for the use of
the person who may be entitled thereto, subject to any order of a court. If such a surplus does not
remain to be turned over, the report shall so state.

Demolition process.

(1

2)

)

Security deposit. Applicants desiring a permit to demolish a structure shall deposit with the City a
security deposit in the amount specified below.

a. Residential Accessory Structure $5,000.00

b. Single-Family Dwelling $10,000.00

c. Multi-Family Dwelling (3 units or less) $5,000.00 per unit

d. Nonresidential and Multi-Family Residential | $5.00 per square foot
(4 units or more)

Bond in lieu of security deposit. In lieu of the security deposit required, as set forth above, an owner
or authorized representative may deposit with the City a performance bond or irrevocable letter of
credit, in a sum equal to the security deposit that would be required pursuant to this section, to ensure
the completion of the demolition per the standards set forth herein.

Forfeiture of bond or security deposit. In the event that demolition is not completed per the standards
set forth herein, the required security deposit, bond, or irrevocable letter of credit shall be forfeited
and paid over to the City. However, if the bond, security deposit, or letter of credit is not sufficient to
cover all inspection or demolition costs, additional fees shall be required when needed, at the
discretion of the City Manager. Such fees will be the responsibility of the property owner.

Demolition requirements:

(1

Safety precautions. The owner or authorized representative shall take appropriate safety precautions
in order to prevent injury, property damage, and unauthorized entry. Reasonable control measures
shall be in place at all times as necessary including, but not limited to, guard rails, barriers, warning
lights, fences, and warning notices. Trenches, ditches or other excavations that are falling or tripping
hazards shall not be left unattended unless protected by temporary fencing or other barrier designed
to prevent unauthorized entry.




RECORD OF ORDINANCES

Ordinance No. 2021-6 May 24, 2021

2

)

“4)

)
(6)

(7

®)

)

(10)

Dust and debris control. The demolition site shall at all times be maintained in a manner to reduce
the impact of dust on adjacent properties and prevent debris from falling on adjacent properties or
public rights-of-way.

Maintenance of the right-of-way. All streets, sidewalks and other areas in the public right-of-way
shall be kept free of mud and/or debris as a result of demolition activities, including hauling and
grading activities.

Utilities. All utilities, including sanitary sewer, water, gas, and electric shall be disconnected and
capped per the appropriate utility's regulations. The Contractor is responsible for contacting the Ohio
Utilities Protection Service (OUPS) to locate utilities and each individual utility to confirm the status
of abandonment, retirement or capping of those utilities.

Foundations. All footers and foundation walls shall be removed in their entirety.

Concrete and asphalt. All slabs, driveways, parking areas, driveway approaches and other areas of
impervious surface shall be removed unless agreed upon in writing by the City prior to
commencement of demolition. Public sidewalks shall remain. New curbing shall be installed in
accordance with City specifications where driveway approaches were removed.

Removal of accessory structures. When demolition includes demolition of the principal structure, all
accessory structures, including but not limited to fences, decks, storage sheds, garages, and signs,
shall be removed along with the principal structure unless agreed upon to remain prior to demolition.

Landscaping. All landscaping shall be removed from the site unless agreed upon to remain prior to
demolition by the City.

Finish grading. All excavations shall be leveled with approved clean fill and compacted substantially
to prevent future settling. Finish grade shall be level, smooth and free of rocks and/or other debris.

Grass. Grass shall be replaced on the lot either by seed or sod. Seed shall be reasonably free of weeds
or coarse grass and shall be evenly sown onto the topsoil. Demolition shall not be considered
completed until grass has been restored to the site.

(e) Demolition plan. A demolition plan is required upon submittal of a Demolition Permit Application. The plan
shall include the following items:

(1
2
3)
“4)

)

(6)

Erosion control plan;
Projected start and end date;
Staging requirements; ane

Site plan showing structure(s) to be demolished tesn, location of construction fences, barriers,
railings, and walkways (can be copied from Greene County GIS);

Copy of the approved Greene County Demolition Permit,; and -

Certificate of Appropriateness, if located in the Old Village District.




RECORD OF ORDINANCES

Ordinance No. 2021-6 May 24, 2021

) Transfer of permit. A demolition permit, once approved, may be transferred upon the sale of the property. A

letter from the original permit holder stating they wish to transfer the approved permit to a new owner must be
submitted to the City.




RECORD OF ORDINANCES

Ordinance No. 2021-7 June 14, 2021

CITY OF BELLBROOK, OHIO
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-7

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING OLD SECTION 412.07, “SPECIAL EVENTS” OF THE
BELLBROOK MUNICIPAL CODE AND ENACTING A NEW SECTION 412.07 “SPECIAL
EVENTS” OF THE BELLBROOK MUNICIPAL CODE.

WHEREAS, the Bellbrook Municipal Code includes Section 412.07 “Special Events,” which
establishes procedures and outlines regulations for special events of a temporary nature in the City of
Bellbrook; and

WHEREAS, the old Section 412.07 “Special Events” addressed special events held on public
property and special events held on private property open to the public; and

WHEREAS, City Staff recommends revisions to Section 412.07 to remove provisions related to
special events conducted on private property and to provide revised regulations concerning special events
held on public property.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF BELLBROOK HEREBY ORDAINS:

Section 1. The old Section 412.07 “Special Events” of the Bellbrook Municipal Code is hereby
repealed.

Section 2. A new Section 412.07 “Special Events” of the Bellbrook Municipal Code is hereby
enacted as set forth in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, with
deletions shown by strikethretigh and additions by italics and underlined.

Section 3. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that any
and all deliberations of this Council that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public,
in compliance with all legal requirements, including, but not limited to Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised
Code.

Section 4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period
provided by law.
PASSED this day of ,2021.

Nick Edwards, Deputy Mayor

ATTEST:

Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council







RECORD OF ORDINANCES

Ordinance No. 2021-7 June 14, 2021

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Stephen M. McHugh, Municipal Attorney

EXHIBIT A

Sec. 412.07. - Special events.

(a) Purpose of chapter. The purpose of this chapter is to make provision for special events of a
temporary nature which may-be are held on Gity-ewned public property within the Municipality and open to
the general public, regardless of the zoning provisions generally applicable to such property. Any such
special events shall be subject to the requirements of this chapter.

(b) Definitions. As used in this chapter:

City Manager shall mean the City Manager or the Manager's designee.

Gity-faeilities Public property shall mean City-owned parking lots, ard City-owned buildings, parks,
public school property, and any public right-of-way including but not limited to streets, sidewalks, and

waterways.

Temporary special event shall mean any outdoor activity or series of outdoor activities

open to the public specific to an identifiable time and place. that-are-most-oftenproduced
in-conjunction-with-community-erganizations: Temporary special events may be held on

City-owned property; or events on public-private property epen-to-thepublic-regardless of
zoning restrictions applicable to the property. Temporary special events include, but are

not limited to, one or more of the following activities eharacteristics:

1) Any activity inv

such asa festlval, fa/r, carmval/mrcus spepts—event
hobby/trade show, art/craft show, car show, public dance, parade, convention, concert or
performance;

2) Any activity that may substantially increase or disrupt the normal flow of traffic on any
sidewalk, street, or highway;

3) Any activity which involves the use of City-facilities any public property situated in the
City,

4) Any activity which iavelves requires the use of City services that would not otherwise be
necessary in the absence of such an event; or

Temporary structures shall mean structures that include, but are not limited to, stages, tents, food
trucks, booths, seating areas and portable restrooms.




RECORD OF ORDINANCES

Ordinance No. 2021-7 June 14, 2021

(c) Permit required. No person or entity shall hold a temporary special event within the City of
Bellbrook without a permit issued by the City Manager as required by this chapter.

(d) Applications.

(1) Any person, entity, or organization wanting to hold a temporary special event shall submit
an application for a Special Event application Permit with the requisite application fee, and
proof of insurance, and all other application materials required by this section to the City
Manager no later than 30 days prior to the date of the requested event.

(a) Within 14 days of receiving a completed application with all required
supporting documents and fees as outlined in this section, the City
Manager shall either approve or deny the application. If the application is
denied, the City Manager shall, in writing, state why the application was
denied.

(2) A twenty-five dollar ($25.00) non-refundable application fee is due at the time of
application.

(3) Each application shall describe the type of event, the location, the proposed activity and

the number of days on WhICh it is to be held. Eaeh—aaphem%t—sha“—prewd&a—lettepe#

" , d ; : . - A site plan
showing the proposed layout and number of any temporary structures must be included.

(5) Each application shall set forth any potential parking or traffic flow problems and the
proposed resolution of the same.

(6) If the event is to include the sale of alcohol, the requisite Temporary Permit must be
obtained from the Ohio Department of Commerce, Division of Liquor Control in advance of
the Special Event. When the Temporary Permit is received by the event organizer, a copy
of the Temporary Permit must be delivered to the City of Bellbrook. It is the organizer’s
responsibility to ensure that alcoholic beverages will not be carried into public areas where
underage citizens are present and to ensure that the event is in full compliance with all
state and local laws and requlations concerning the sale and use of alcoholic beverages.

(7) Any activity not expressly stated in an approved application shall be prohibited.

(8) All application fees and materials required by this section must be submitted
contemporaneously to the City Manager. The City Manager will not consider any
incomplete applications for a Special Event Permit.

(e) Conflicts with previously scheduled events. Each temporary special event date will be considered
for approval on a first-come, first served basis, based on the date the application was submitted to the
City Manager. No temporary special event will be permitted which would conflict with other civic or special
events Jocated in the same area, whether previously authorized by the City Manager or by other
appropriate authorities. The application must include all required supporting materials, fees and insurance
requirements before the City Manager will approve the requested event.




RECORD OF ORDINANCES

Ordinance No. 2021-7 June 14, 2021

(f) Liability insurance.

(1) Each applicant for a temporary Special Event Permit shall provide proof of general liability
insurance, in an amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00), which shall
indemnify and save harmless the City from any and all judgments, costs or expenses
which the City may incur or suffer by permitting the temporary special event. The
Certificate of General Liability Insurance must establish that the City is an additional
insured. Additional insurance is required for fireworks and pyrotechnics.

(2) The applicant also agrees and promises to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City
of Bellbrook, Ohio, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers from and against any
liability for any equipment or supplies lost, stolen, or damaged that are stored or otherwise
as a result of or in connection to this event.

(3) The following language must be on the Certificate of General Liability insurance:

The following are additional insureds: the City of Bellbrook, Ohio and its elected and
appointed officials, all employees, agents, volunteers, all boards, commissions and/or
authorities and board members, including employees, agents and volunteers thereof.
Coverage shall be primary to the additional insureds and not contributing with any other
insurance or similar protection available to the additional insureds whether other available
coverage be primary, contributing or excess.

(9) Regularly occurring events. Special events that will be occurring regularly, such as seasonal fairs
or farmers markets, shall only be required to submit one application for a Special Event Permit per
calendar year. Any Special Event Permit granted for any reqularly occurring event is only applicable to the
specific type of reqularly occurring event described in the application.

(h) Sidewalk obstructions. Any proposed sidewalk obstructions for a temporary special event shall ret

be-permitted-without-expressed-permission-from-the-Gity be specifically outlined in the application with an

alternate route for pedestrians of all abilities. The City Manager may deny any application for a Special
Event Permit that unreasonably restrict or interferes with pedestrian traffic flow.

) City services. The City shall invoice the applicant for City services provided to temporary special
events at rates set by the City Manager. The City Manager or the Manager's designee reserves the right
to determine the services and levels of services provided to any event.

() Permits, licenses, inspections. The applicant is responsible for obtaining all permits, licenses
and/or inspections required by local, county and/or state laws and requlations eutside-agencies-and

crgeiEstens,

(k) Mobile food vehicles. An applicant that plans to use mobile food vehicles must have all applicable
permits/licenses as required by the Greene County Health Department.

()] Signage. Special events are eligible to post event-related signage in the public right-of-way. To
apply, the event sponsor must provide the desired sign placement locations via a map, number of signs
desired and the sign's size to the City Manager or his or her designee. The City reserves the right to
further limit the number of special event signs based on other event signage requests or other extenuating
circumstances.

(1) Placement and size. A maximum of four off-site signs are permitted to be installed for the
approved event in the public right-of-way. Off-site sighage requires a site plan showing




RECORD OF ORDINANCES

Ordinance No. 2021-7 June 14, 2021

(m)

(n)

(3)

where the signs are proposed to go. Each off-site sign shall not exceed 32 square feet in
overall sign area and six feet in overall height. In situations where the timing of approved
special events overlap, the City reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to reduce the
number of off-site signs allocated to each event in order to accommodate the signage
needs of multiple events to the extent practical. Regardless of any limitation or reallocation
of signage, the total number of sign positions will not exceed the maximum of four as
outlined above. Only City Staff are permitted to install approved off-site signage in the
City's right-of-way. Off-site signage, as approved via the Special Event Permit, shall be
exempt from all signage requirements of set forth in the Bellbrook Zoning Code. All
signage must be kept in good repair. Signage may not be installed by the event sponsor
within the public right-of-way, on lampposts, utility poles, traffic signage, any location
where the view of vehicle traffic would be obstructed, or on any private property without the
private property owner’s express, written consent.

Timeframe of signage. Temporary special event signage approved by the City Manager
consistent with this section with-this-application, are-permitted-te may be placed up to 14
days before the proposed single occurrence event and must be taken down no later than
three 3 days after the event's end. Signage for regular occurring events shall be approved
by the City Manager on a case-by-case basis.

Signage without permit. All signage erected without first obtaining the Special Event Permit
and approval of the City Manager are illegal and subject to removal.

Additional conditions or requirements. The City Manager reserves the right with respect to all
temporary special events to establish such additional conditions or requirements as the Manager, in
his/her discretion, deems advisable. Any temporary special event or private event that does not comply
with abide-by the regulations set forth in this chapter or any other requirements established by the City
Manager is subject to immediate cancellation by the City Manager.

Penalty.

(1)

(3)

Whoever violates any of the provisions of this chapter shall be fined not more than two
hundred fifty ene hundred dollars ($250400.00). A separate offense shall be deemed
committed each day during or on which a violation occurs or continues.

It is the event organization's responsibility to clean up debris left over from the event and to
leave the public property in the same manner and condition in which it was found prior to
the special event. Failure to clean up following the event will result in a five hundred dollar
($500.00) clean-up fee being sentto assessed against the person and/or organization
responsible for the event or the actual cost of any necessary repairs and clean up,
whichever is higher.

Organizers who have committed violations of this ordinance may not be eligible for

approval of future Special Event Permits.

(o) Exceptions. The following shall be considered exempt from the requirements of this section:
(1) Events held on public property and sponsored by the City of Bellbrook
(2) Events held on public property and sponsored by the Bellbrook Sugarcreek Parks District
(3) Events held on public property and sponsored by the Bellbrook Sugarcreek School District




RECORD OF ORDINANCES

Ordinance No. 2021-7 June 14, 2021

(4) Sidewalk sales related to the abutting permitted principal business so long as the sales do
not obstruct the flow of pedestrian traffic and are otherwise in compliance with all state and local laws.







CITY OF BELLBROOK

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT
el ]_ brOOk 15 EAST FRANKLIN STREET, BELLBROOK, OHI0 45305

(937) 848-4666 WWW.CITYOFBELLBROOK.ORG

APPLICANT INFORMATION

NAME OF APPLICANT

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PHONE NUMBER

MAILING ADDRESS

CITY/STATE/ZIP

EMAIL

EVENT INFORMATION

NAME OF EVENT

DATE(S) OF THE EVENT

TIME OF THE EVENT

TYPE OF EVENT ALcoHoL SErvep: [ Yes L] No

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE EVENT

STREETS OR PUBLIC AREAS REQUESTING TO CLOSE:

PLEASE HIGHLIGHT/MARK THE EVENT AREA OR EVENT ROUTE ON A MAP

WILL SIGNS BE PLACED IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY?  YES NO

IF YES, PROVIDE A MAP DETAILING WHERE THE SIGNS WILL BE PLACED AND THE SIZE OF THE SIGNS.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

HOLD HARMLESS: THE PERMITTEE WILL HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY THE CITY OF BELLBROOK, ITS ELECTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND
AGENTS FROM ANY DAMAGES WHICH MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THE CONDUCT OF THE PARADE OR ASSEMBLY FOR WHICH THE PERMIT IS SOUGHT BY PERSONS
WHO WERE OR REASONABLY SHOULD HAVE BEEN UNDER THE CONTROL OF THE PERMITTEE.

PRIOR TO THE BEGINNING OF THE EVENT, IT IS IMPORTANT THAT ALL PARTICIPANTS BE ADVISED TO OBEY PEDESTRIAN REGULATIONS AND CROSS ONLY AT
INTERSECTIONS OR AS DIRECTED BY THE POLICE.

YOUR ORGANIZATION WILL HAVE TO ARRANGE FOR PAYMENT FOR THE USE OF SERVICES (WATER, ELECTRIC, TRASH PICK-UP) WHETHER PROVIDED BY A PRIVATE
OWNER OR PUBLIC ENTITY. EXTRAORDINARY PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES (EXCESSIVE OVERTIME) MAY ALSO NEED TO BE PAID FOR AT THE DETERMINATION OF THE
CITY MANAGER.

IT IS THE EVENT ORGANIZATION’S RESPONSIBILITY TO CLEAN UP DEBRIS LEFT OVER FROM THE EVENT. FAILURE TO CLEAN UP FOLLOWING THE EVENT WILL REST IN A
$500 CLEAN-UP FEE BEING SENT TO THE PERSON AND/OR ORGANIZATION RESPONSIBLE FOR THE EVENT.

APPLICANT SIGNATURE DATE / /

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT



REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS:

EVENT LAYOUT MAP WITH ANY ROAD CLOSURES NOTED

SIGN LAYOUT MAP (IF DISPLAYING TEMPORARY SIGNS)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

COPY OF LIQUOR LICENSE (IF APPLICABLE)

FEE

OFFICE USE ONLY

PERMIT FEE PAYMENT TYPE

PERMIT NUMBER

s

CasH ] CHeck I #

Approvep L1 Denien L]

STAFF SIGNATURE

DATE

/

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT




RECORD OF RESOLUTIONS

Resolution No. 2021-L May 10, 2021

City of Bellbrook
Resolution No. 2021-L

A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into an Agreement with the
Bellbrook-Sugarcreek Local School District for School Security.

WHEREAS, the Bellbrook-Sugarcreek Local School District has requested that the Bellbrook
Police Department continue its increased presence at schools within the City limits beyond its normal
patrol; and

WHEREAS, the School District agreed to compensate the City for this increased presence; and
WHEREAS, the agreement will be effective for the 2021-2022 school year.
Now, Therefore, the City of Bellbrook Hereby Resolves:

Section 1. That the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the attached agreement
with the Bellbrook-Sugarcreek Local School District.

Section 2. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force forthwith.

Michael W. Schweller, Mayor

ATTEST:

Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council







School Security Agreement
For Bellbrook Police Officers

This agreement is made this day of , 2021 by and between the
City of Bellbrook and the Bellbrook - Sugarcreek Local School District, Bellbrook, Ohio,
hereafter referred to as the "District".

WHEREAS, the District wishes to utilize the services of Bellbrook police
officers in a security assignment.

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein:

1. Security and Enforcement

A.

Officers assigned to this detail will focus on providing visible security for
the students, staff and visitors of the District’s school buildings. The
security assignment will include the following;

1. Vehicle patrol of parking areas and the grounds of any building.
2. Foot patrol of parking areas and grounds of any building.
3. Foot patrol of the interior of any building.

. Buildings to be patrolled

Sugarcreek Education Center / School Administrative Building
Bell Creek Intermediate School

Bellbrook-Sugarcreek Transportation office (on request).
Sugarcreek Elementary School

Stephen Bell Elementary School

Other school buildings on an as needed basis.

A e

Assignment Times

This assignment will be based on the preceding schools’ regular school
day hours. The City of Bellbrook Police Department will strive to provide
a minimum of 4 hours of security on site at any one or more of the
buildings set forth in Item (1)(B), each school day. Other time necessary
for the assignment, or requested by the District, will be provided as
officers are available.

Documentation

Each school day, an on-duty officer will be assigned the school security
detail, in addition to the officer’s normal patrol duties. The on-duty
dispatcher will log the time the officer signs off at a school for this
assignment, and will log the time the officer returns to regular patrol
service. The minimum amount of time counted for this assignment will be
30 minutes. As the officer returns to service, he/she will indicate to the
dispatcher what activity was performed during the time period (A 1-3).



The records for this assignment will be retained by the Bellbrook Police
Department; however copies will be available for the District, if requested.

E. Officers assigned to this security detail will be responsible for the
enforcement of the Municipal Code, as well as State and Federal Statutes.
The District may provide general instructions and direction to City law
enforcement personnel so engaged as to the performance of the agreed to
police services, however, City law enforcement personnel shall at all times
be bound by the Rules, Regulations and Policies of the City of Bellbrook
Police Department.

. Uniform

Officers shall wear the complete uniform of the Bellbrook Police Department
and be responsible for completing the appropriate reports and forms necessary
to conclude an incident when engaging in the security assignment, unless
directed to the contrary by a police supervisor.

Supervision

The Bellbrook Police Department on-duty supervisor has the responsibility to
oversee the activities of officers assigned school security during their
respective tour of duty.

. Release from Service

In the event of a city emergency requiring the services of a police officer
assigned to security for the District, the District agrees that such officer will
be released immediately from the security assignment.

Cost of Services

This agreement covers the 2021-2022 school year. Hours of the assignment
will be based on the school days in each of the school buildings in the City of
Bellbrook. The District agrees to pay the City of Bellbrook a flat rate of
$16,500 for the 2021-2022 school year. The District may request additional
officers, or assignment times, if necessary.

. Hold Harmless

The District shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City, its officers,
employees, agents and volunteers against any and all liability, loss, costs,
damages, expenses, claims or actions, including attorney's fees which the
City, its officers or employees may hereafter sustain, incur or be required to
pay, arising wholly or in part due to any act or omission of the District, its
agents, servants or employees, in the execution of performance of this
contract.

The Bellbrook Police Department of the City of Bellbrook will not be held
liable, nor have breached this contract, in the event officers cannot be
scheduled or provided for the work/event(s) requested.



The District shall secure and maintain, during the period of the agreement,
commercial general liability insurance which will protect it and the City from
claims for bodily injury, death, property damage or personal injury which may
arise from any act or omission of the District, its agents, servants, or
employees in the performance of this agreement. The District shall provide the
City a Certificate of Insurance showing evidence of such coverage.

7. Invoice
The City shall invoice the District for the amount provided under this
Agreement in two separate billings, each for one half of the total amount due.
Invoices will be sent by the City in January and August. The District shall
make payment to the City in the full amount of such invoice no later than
thirty (30) days from the date of invoice.

8. Workers' Compensation
While any City of Bellbrook police officer is working for the District as set
forth in this Agreement, the City of Bellbrook will provide the officer with
insurance coverage through the State of Ohio Bureau of Workers'
Compensation.

9. This Agreement shall terminate on July 1, 2022 or as otherwise provided
herein. This Agreement may be terminated by the City at any time and for any
reason whatsoever by the City providing the District with written notice of
such termination at least 20 days prior to the date of termination. This
Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual agreement of the City
and the District.

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have set their hands the day and year first about
written.

City Manager Superintendent
City of Bellbrook Bellbrook-Sugarcreek Local School District
Chief of Police

City of Bellbrook






RECORD OF RESOLUTIONS

Resolution No. 2021-M May 10, 2021

City of Bellbrook
Resolution No. 2021-M

A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into an Agreement with the
Bellbrook-Sugarcreek Local School District for Security at Home Football Games.

WHEREAS, the Bellbrook-Sugarcreek Local School District has requested that the Bellbrook
Police Department provide police officers in an extra duty capacity at Bellbrook High School home
football games; and

WHEREAS, the School District agreed to compensate the City for this extra duty; and
WHEREAS, the agreement will be effective for the 2021 home football season.
Now, Therefore, the City of Bellbrook Hereby Resolves:

Section 1. That the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the attached agreement
with the Bellbrook-Sugarcreek Local School District.

Section 2. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force forthwith.

Michael W. Schweller, Mayor

ATTEST:

Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council







Extra Duty Employment Agreement
For Bellbrook Police Officers

This agreement is made this day of ,.2021 by and between
the City of Bellbrook, hereafter referred to as the “City,” and the Bellbrook-Sugarcreek
Local School District, hereafter referred to as the "District".

WHEREAS, the District wishes to utilize the services of City police officers in a
security assignment, specifically, security for the 2021 Fall Bellbrook High School (home
game) football season.

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein:
Scope of the Agreement

This agreement covers the 2020 Fall Bellbrook High School (Home game) football
season from the first home football game in August 2021 until December 2021. Hours of
the assignment will be from 1830 to 2130. (Additional time may be spent after the event,
in crowd and traffic control). Additional services may be at the request of the District or
in the discretion of the City. Three officers will be assigned to each game, if available.
The District may request additional officers, if necessary.

. Enforcement

Officers employed in an extra-duty police-related capacity shall be responsible for the
enforcement of City Ordinances, as well as State and Federal Statutes. The District may
provide general instructions and direction to City law enforcement personnel so engaged
as to the performance of the agreed to police services, however, City law enforcement
personnel shall at all times be bound by the Rules, Regulations and Policies of the City of
Bellbrook Police Department.

. Uniform

Officers shall wear the complete uniform of the Bellbrook Police Department and be
responsible for completing the appropriate reports and forms necessary to conclude an
incident when engaging in extra duty police-related employment unless directed to the
contrary by a police supervisor.

Supervision
The Bellbrook Police Department on-duty supervisor has the responsibility to oversee the

activities of officers engaged in extra duty police-related employment during their
respective tour of duty. Whenever more than four (4) officers are required for the same



time at the same extra duty place of employment, a supervising officer, if available, will
be assigned for supervision purposes and compensated as provided in paragraph six (6).

Release from Service

In the event of a city emergency requiring the services of any extra duty police officer
employed by the District, the District agrees that such officer will be released
immediately from the extra duty employment.

Cost of Services

The District agrees to pay the City of Bellbrook a flat rate of $125.00 per officer per
night.

Hold harmless

The District shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City, its officers, employees,
agents and volunteers against any and all liability, loss, costs, damages, expenses, claims
or actions, including attorney's fees which the City, its officers or employees may
hereafter sustain, incur or be required to pay, arising wholly or in part due to any act or
omission of the District, its agents, servants or employees, in the execution of
performance of this contract.

The Bellbrook Police Department of the City of Bellbrook will not be held liable in the
event officers cannot be scheduled or provided for the work/event(s) requested.

The District shall secure and maintain, during the period of the agreement, commercial
general liability insurance which will protect it and the City from claims for bodily
injury, death, property damage or personal injury which may arise from any act or
omission of the District, its agents, servants, or employees in the performance of this
agreement. The District shall provide the City a Certificate of Insurance showing
evidence of such coverage.

Invoice

The City shall deliver to the District a monthly invoice for the cost of City law
enforcement personnel provided under this Agreement. The District shall make payment
to the City in the full amount of such invoice no later than thirty (30) days from the date
of invoice.

Workers' Compensation

While any City of Bellbrook police officer is working for the District as set forth in this
Agreement, the City of Bellbrook will provide the officer with insurance coverage
through the State of Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation.



10. This Agreement shall terminate on December 31, 2021 or as otherwise provided herein.
This Agreement may be terminated by the City at any time and for any reason
whatsoever by the City providing the District with written notice of such termination at
least 20 days prior to the date of termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any
time by mutual agreement of the City and the District.

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have set their hands the day and year first about
written.

City Manager Superintendent
City of Bellbrook Bellbrook Sugarcreek Local School District
Chief of Police

City of Bellbrook






To: Mayor & City Council

From: Melissa Dodd, City Manager
Date: May 21, 2021

Subject: City Manager Update

Finance and Utility Billing Software Conversion — We are now set to finally make our
conversion on May 27 and will be live on the 4t of June. Our bill pay portal and entire billing
and finance system will be down as of May 27 and will not be back up until June 4%, Utility bills
will be delayed in going out due to the conversion. Since customers will be required to use a
different online portal, we plan to waive late penalties for each bill cycle for their first billing
with the new system to ensure folks are not penalized during the transition.

Bellbrook TV Update — We were able to get back on air and have created a looped video that is
airing on the cable channel with helpful information. Airing live to cable is still an issue we are
working through.

In person meetings - Pam and Lt. Nartker have worked to be able to have the Council chamber
cameras be able to go directly to YouTube for in person meetings once we get to that point. We
are unable to do a hybrid of online and in person though so each individual meeting will have to
be either fully online or fully in person. Keep in mind that the online meeting provision
currently expires at the end of June. This could be extended or made permanent which a
current bill is making its way through the statehouse. but until something changes we are
looking at the end of June.

American Rescue Plan — Guidance was released on May 10t™. We are still unsure as to exactly
how much we will receive. | expect the first half of the funds to be released to us within the
next month from the state. Once we know how much we are receiving we can start to discuss
how we might be able to best spend it. We have until December 31, 2024 to spend it so there is
no rush to make any decisions like the last funding.

Article 14 — The rewrite of Article 14 has made it through Planning Board. Legal made some
revisions which we took back to Planning Board for a second approval on May 20%™. We plan to
take this finalized version to VRB next for their review as a courtesy. They will not meet until
July though. After VRB review, Council will be able to review prior to bringing it in ordinance
form.



	Ordinance 2021-7 Special Event Permit Attachment.pdf
	applicant information
	Event information

	Resolution 2021-L Attachment.pdf
	For Bellbrook Police Officers

	Resolution 2021-M Attachment.pdf
	For Bellbrook Police Officers

	2021-5-24  CM Update.pdf
	 Finance and Utility Billing Software Conversion – We are now set to finally make our conversion on May 27 and will be live on the 4th of June. Our bill pay portal and entire billing and finance system will be down as of May 27 and will not be back u...
	 Bellbrook TV Update – We were able to get back on air and have created a looped video that is airing on the cable channel with helpful information. Airing live to cable is still an issue we are working through.
	 In person meetings - Pam and Lt. Nartker have worked to be able to have the Council chamber cameras be able to go directly to YouTube for in person meetings once we get to that point. We are unable to do a hybrid of online and in person though so ea...
	 American Rescue Plan – Guidance was released on May 10th. We are still unsure as to exactly how much we will receive. I expect the first half of the funds to be released to us within the next month from the state. Once we know how much we are receiv...
	 Article 14 – The rewrite of Article 14 has made it through Planning Board. Legal made some revisions which we took back to Planning Board for a second approval on May 20th. We plan to take this finalized version to VRB next for their review as a cou...

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



